BOARD OF DIRECTORS
METROPOLITAN DOMESTIC WATER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA

April 26, 2000
** Board Room**
Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District

6265 N. La Caifiada Drive
Tucson, AZ. 85704

MINUTES

Board Members Present: Pete Schlegel, Chair
Jim Doyle, Vice-Chair
Dennis Polley, Member

Board Members Not Present: Marlene Wright, Member
Sam Ray, Member

District Staff: Mark R. Stratton, General Manager
Warren J. Tenney, Clerk of the Board

I. Call to Order and Roll Call

Pete Schlegel, Chair of the Board of Directors of the Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement
District (District), called the Board meeting to order at 5:32 p.m. Jim Doyle, Dennis Polley and
Pete Schlegel were present. Marlene Wright and Sam Ray were not present.

111. Award of Construction Contract for the Cresta Loma FEstates Mainline
Replacement

Mark Stratton, General Manager, told the Board that the District received only two bids for this
project due to the difficult nature of the project based on rocky soil, steep areas and one-lane
brick pavement. He explained that because of staff’s not being famihar with projects of this
nature, the engineer’s estimate was lower than the contractor’s bids. The low bid was
approximately $100,000 higher than the engineer’s estimate. He noted that due to the difficult
terrain of this project, the Board should consider ductile iron pipe (DIP) rather than polyvinyl
chloride (PVC) since it was only a $13,000 difference in cost.

Mr. Schlegel asked if fire hydrants were to be installed during this project. Mr. Stratton
responded that fire hydrants were provided for in all mainline replacement projects. Twelve
installations were scheduled for this project.



Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District
Board of Directors Meeting

April 26, 2000

Page 2

Mr. Doyle made a motion to award the construction contract for Cresta Loma Mainline
Replacement (M-98-12) to Com-Pac, Inc., as suggested in Alternate B, in the amount not to
exceed $667,895. Also to authorize the General Manager to approve the following changes to
the construction contract: 1) allocate additional funding a cumulative amount not-to-exceed
$25,000 and 2) increase the original construction contract term a cumulative amount not-to-
exceed thirty (30) calendar days. Any changes in excess of the above limits shall be submitted to
the Board of Directors for approval. Mr. Polley seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.

Mr. Schlegel asked why there were only two bidders for this project. Charlie Maish, District
Engineer, stated that the difficult nature of this project coupled with the abundance of work
prospects, there were few bidders for this or any other project.

II1. Discussion of Draft FiscalYear 2000-2001 Budget

Mike Land, Chief Financial Officer, explained that this was the second part of detailed budget
discussions with the Board. He stated that at the last study session the budgets for the
Engineering and Utility divisions were examined. He distributed a revised General Manager’s
Office/Administration Division 2000-2991 Budget Worksheet with two changes from the
previous one issued.

A. Budget Items for Administration Division/General Manager’s Office.

Mr. Land described the salaries and benefits portion of the budget. He explained there were no
positions requested for the General Manager’s Office or Administration Divisions. The slight
increase in the budget was to cover merit and COLA increases, which had been previously
budgeted in the contingency fund. Mr. Land detailed the supplies category stating that the costs
for office forms, billing statements, office supplies, fax and copier supplies were included in this
category. He stated that this category was being decreased slightly.

Mr. Land explained the operating expense category. He stated that the first change in this
proposal was for the purchased natural gas expenditure. Based on last year’s bills and residence
in the new building, purchased natural gas cost requests were increased. He stated that the
category for Board attendance increased slightly while the category for Board meeting expenses
decreased. He pointed out a new category for election costs. Mr. Land explained the large
increase in the MPC Lease was for the Herb Johnson Reservoir and the District considered this
payment as a rent to the MPC but it is actually a debt service. Mr. Schlegel asked if this category
was expected to keep increasing. Mr. Land responded that it will level off at this amount for the

next few years.

Mr. Land said that fuel expenses had increased. Mr. Land stated that there was an increase in the
memberships and subscriptions expenses due to the District’s membership in the Southern
Arizona Water Users Associations (SAWUA). He said that the travel category remained the
same and education and training increased slightly.



Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District
Board of Directors Meeting

April 26, 2000

Page 3

Mr. Land explained that the second change for this worksheet was in the
telephone/communications/website category. He said that the website costs used to be included
in the computer support category, but staff felt it was more appropriate to be included in the
telephone/communications area. Mr. Stratton stated that staff currently experiences difficulty in
reception because of signal strength with the Nextel radio/cell phones. He added that Mr. Hill
was investigating various options including returning to two-way radios and installing our own
repeater. Chris Hill, Deputy Manager, added that there are vendors who offer lease purchase
programs and he is exploring those options as well.

Mr. Land said that the toilet rebate program costs category increased slightly based on the
District’s costs so far this year. Warren Tenney, Assistant to the General Manager, reminded the
Board that the toilet rebate program was a requirement for the Non-Per Capita Conservation
program. Mr. Land indicated that the conservation area decreased. Mr. Tenney stated the
decrease was attributed to staff being able to do much of the Non Per Capital program’s initial
expenses this year, thus minimizing expenses for the new year. Mr. Land stated that public
outreach conservation decreased.

Mr. Land stated that the insurance category costs are based on the proposal of the insurance
provider. The District has been able to save money by separating from Pima County. It is hoped
that within the next month an exact amount will be known.

The bond expense items are set based on the debt service schedule. He noted that the debt
service on the 1992 refinance purchase and 1999 CIP increased and that the payment for the
purchase of Hub Water Company was included in this category. He stated that the debt service
category increased dramatically. Mr. Schlegel asked if there were going to be any more bonds
issued this year. Mr. Land and Mr. Stratton replied the next bond issuance was anticipated for
the 2001-2002 budget year.

Mr. Land said that the computer support category increased due to the need for consultation on
computer and communications needs. Mr. Schlegel stated this was a large increase. Mr. Stratton
replied the District had no in-house services or personnel able to keep up with advancing
technology and staff needed to rely on consultants to determine needs and how they could be
integrated into the District’s existing network. He explained that the District had a number of
different computer support items. Mr. Stratton said that an in-house IT Committee had been
formed to determine computer hardware needs and what adjustments needed to be made to
existing hardware. He stated that there would be a few “high-end” computers purchased and the
remaining computers would be distributed to other staff and memory upgrades would also be
distributed to make all staff’s computers more productive.

Mr. Land explained that accounting costs went down and legal expenses were increased. Mr.
Stratton asked that legal costs related to CIP contract reviews be identified, which would be
reimbursed by CIP bond funds.

Mr. Land stated that the Tucson settlement category amount remained the same. The CAP water
purchase category has been increased and that a CAP reallocation purchase category was



Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District
Board of Directors Meeting

April 26, 2000

Page 4

included. Mr. Stratton stated that the $1.2 million may not necessarily be expended this fiscal
year, it depended on the timeframe for settlement between CAWCD and the federal government.
Mr. Land indicated that the contingency fund category decreased due to the funds previously
included in this category for merit and COLA increases were budgeted and distributed

throughout the other divisions.

Mr. Stratton stated that the capital expenditure category for computer/accessories included
$3,000 for the purchase of new ports for the system; the purchase of a tape backup system for
centralization of backup for all the systems; and, $8,000 for firewall protection for the website.
He indicated that $6,000 would be used towards the purchase of replacement computers,
memory upgrades and printers. Mr. Schlegel asked if there was firewall protection for the
telemetry system. Mr. Stratton stated that at this time the telemetry system is not tied into the
website. Mr. Hill added that firewall protection for the telemetry system is not an issue at this
time, but will be in the future. Mr. Land stated the last category is for the purchase of a copier
for the Engineering and Utility Divisions.

Mr. Land stated that the General Manager and Administration Division budgets increased over
$2 million, with the majority of those related to the debt service retirement and a $1.2 million

allocation for CAP water.

Mor. Land summarized the budget stating that revenues should increase 5% due to increased rates,
water resource fees and investment income. Operating expenditures increased with the majority
of that increase due to retirement of debt service. He stated that he would provide a more
accurate estimate of the beginning fund balance prior to the adoption of the budget.

Mr. Schlegel expressed his concern about the budget going up 13-14% a year. Mr. Stratton
responded that based on prior indications, the budget would be tight for this two-year period and
then based on growth and cumulative impact of consecutive 4% increases, the strain should
decrease. He said staff would investigate the possibility of delaying the second bond issuance in
order to build up revenues without accruing additional debt service and the possibility of
utilizing WIFA funds.

Mr. Stratton stated that in the original budget projections, the purchase of a sedan for use by staff
was considered. He noted that staff members attended various meetings to represent the District
and that the possibility of purchasing a sedan for this use would be explored.

B. Review of Budget for Utility and Engineering Division.

Mr. Land stated the only update on the Engineering and Utility Division budget was the pending
question regarding water quality testing. Mr. Maish added that the water quality testing category
was erroneously included in the Metro-Main and Metro-Hub budgets and that one of the
categories would be deleted.

Mr. Schlegel asked about the Hub-Metro service area. Mr. Stratton stated that there had been
several mainline breaks recently and staff was trying to replace a section of mainline to help



Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District
Board of Directors Meeting

April 26, 2000

Page 5

alleviate the problem. He added that the consumption use of that area had not decreased despite
higher water rates. He stated that during one mainline break, a storage tank was drained and the
high demand by customers did not allow recovery for the storage tank to refill. Mr. Schlegel
asked if customers had experienced this type of trouble when they were Hub Water customers.
Steve Dean, Utility Manager, affirmed that they had.

V. General Manager’s Report

Mr. Stratton advised the Board that he would be placing an item on the May agenda to ask for
guidance on how to dispose of five service vehicles that are not in use by the District at the
present time. He stated that Pima County would not auction them off due to insurance liabilities.
He indicated that one of the options being considered was for publication for the acceptance of

sealed bids.

Mr. Stratton stated that the week of May 1°' was the annual AWPCA conference as well as the
GUAC’s 20™ Anniversary conference and a number of staff and Mr. Schlegel would be attending
these conferences.

Mr. Stratton announced that Oro Valley issued a press release naming Alan Forrest as its new
Water Utility Director.

V. Adjournment

The meeting adjourned at 6:42 p.m.

J

/ - 1
//< / ‘j\cégfa/f

# - Peter H. Schlegel, Chair of the B@ard

/?Pﬂ

Clerk of the Board /




